

1		Minutes
2		Roseville Community Engagement Commission (CEC)
3		Thursday, October 13, 2016 - 6:30 p.m.
4	1.	Roll Call
5		Chair Scot Becker called the meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. and
6		City Manager Trudgeon called the roll.
7		•
8		Commissioners Present: Chair Scot Becker; and Commissioners Amber
9		Sattler, Erik Tomlinson, Peter Sparby, and Michelle
10		Manke
11		
12		Commissioners Absent: Vice Chair Theresa Gardella and Commissioner
13		Chelsea Holub
14		
15		Staff Present: Staff Liaison/City Manager Patrick Trudgeon and Senior
16		Planner Bryan Lloyd
17	2.	Approve Agenda
18		Commissioner Tomlinson moved, Commissioner Sparby seconded, approval of
19		the agenda as presented.
20		
21		Ayes: 5
22		Nays: 0
23		Motion carried.
24	_	
25	3.	Public Comment on Items Not on Agenda
26		
27	4.	Approval of September 8, 2016 Meeting Minutes
28		Comments and corrections to draft minutes had been submitted by various CEC
29		Commissioners prior to tonight's meeting and those revisions were incorporated
30		into the draft presented in tonight's agenda packet.
31 32		Commissioner Settler moved Commissioner Monks seconded agreed of
32 33		Commissioner Sattler moved, Commissioner Manke seconded, approval of September 8, 2016 meeting minutes as presented.
34		September 8, 2010 meeting minutes as presented.
3 4 35		Ayes: 5
36		Nays: 0
37		Motion carried.
38		Within Carrieu.
39	5.	Old Business
40	٠.	VIA PAULIEUU
41		a. PRIORITY PROJECT UPDATE: Assist in the formulation of the
42		2017 Comprehensive Plan Update Process
43		(Commissioners Tomlinson & Sparby)

City Manager Trudgeon provided a bench handout showing information already available on the city's website related to the comprehensive plan update, *attached hereto and made a part hereof.* Mr. Trudgeon reviewed the update provided in the Priority Project Update Memo and updated checklist prepared by the CEC. Mr. Trudgeon invited the CEC to attend the October 17, 2016 City Council interviews of the two firms as finalists as a result of the Comprehensive Plan Request for Proposals (RFP); and reviewed the remainder of the process after their initial screening, as well as the continuing role of the CEC as the community engagement process moves forward.

City Manager Trudgeon recognized Senior Planner Bryan Lloyd in tonight's audience who will serve as Project Manager during the comprehensive plan update process. Mr. Trudgeon reported that once the firm is chosen and their proposals for community engagement, the City Council will provide further direction for refining that process. Mr. Trudgeon suggested part of that may involve bringing the consultant to the CEC, Planning Commission and City Council for feedback, or perhaps by having members from each of those bodies meet together with the consultant. Mr. Trudgeon clarified that there would be opportunities for community engagement throughout the process.

At the request of Commissioner Sparby, following the November 7, 2016 choice of consultants, Senior Planner Lloyd estimated how quickly the process might ramp up and addressed potential strategies involved as part of that engagement. Mr. Lloyd advised that the intent was for the community engagement strategy to be defined with the consultant team, City Council and Planning Commission as well as others on board before the consultant's programmed efforts kick in, which he considered to be step one. At that point, Mr. Lloyd suggested the schedule could be ramped up after it was determined the city was ready to do so.

For the benefit of the CEC, Senior Planner Lloyd reported that the city's website, comprehensive plan update section, offered links to the two final proposals so they could see what each firm was proposing for their base variety of engagement strategies and suggested timelines proposed for the entire comprehensive plan effort. Mr. Lloyd clarified that served as their core proposal and provides a general sense of the schedule, which would begin once the program was in hand.

City Manager Trudgeon, with concurrence by Senior Planner Lloyd, noted any public strategy probably wouldn't happen until January of 2017, with the remaining months of 2016 used for initial compilation of information to move the process forward.

Commissioner Tomlinson sought clarification if there would be flexibility beyond the proposal, basically consisting of the firm's engagement plan but depending on specific needs of the city.

Senior Planner Lloyd concurred, advising that was part of the original RFP criteria, to allow consultant team members to provide their initial input and past best practices based on their expertise with community engagement. Mr. Lloyd advised that was proposed for a start and then the city could work with the consultant to refine that engagement with staff and input from the City Council, Planning Commission, and CEC.

Based on the questions he had heard this week in the community and brought up frequently to him, Commissioner Sparby opined it was important in the process and would serve as a good next step for the CEC to list frequently asked questions (FAQ) brought forward by the public. Commissioner Sparby opined this would be a good way to condense some of the more common questions into a manageable format for citizens, some of whom may not be aware that there is information already on the city's website, while also allowing the information to be distilled as to what was being talked about and the actual document itself for residents to peruse. Commissioner Sparby suggested this could include a copy of the CEC's checklist as a jumping off point while work continued on the engagement processes, and then after January of 2017 allow for new engagement strategies, and if not already available, they could be produced by the CEC.

City Manager Trudgeon referenced the website information provided as a bench handout, and suggested growing on that information, not specifically the CEC wordsmithing the information, but as the CEC heard questions from the public, they alert staff to incorporate that into the website information. Mr. Trudgeon noted examples of resident needs versus traditional "planner talk."

Commissioner Sparby suggested "Speak Up! Roseville" provided a more informal versus traditional document, since he was hearing that many found the comprehensive plan document and process being unmanageable and foreign, possibly serving as an impediment to engagement. As a CEC, Commissioner Sparby opined there was a need to make it more accessible, suggested this could be a first step allowing for public input on the document and process, especially over the next few months before the process actually kicks off, with the CEC facilitating that engagement.

Senior Planner Lloyd advised that the Metropolitan Council website had a community planning portion with basic and background information on comprehensive planning and the who, what, why and when and where that

134 provided good information. Mr. Lloyd suggested that may serve the 135 purposes of the CEC for their part and provide a basis for them. 136 137 In terms of the checklist itself, Commissioner Sparby noted previous CEC 138 discussion about formalizing it on City letterhead. 139 140 City Manager Trudgeon duly noted that request, advising he would 141 Mr. Trudgeon noted the staff report had already been 142 processed for the October 17, 2016 City Council meeting, but advised he 143 had wanted to get final approval by the CEC before providing it for the 144 City Council, and would present it as a bench handout at their meeting. 145 146 Commissioner Sparby opined it was important for the CEC to have a 147 representative present at that City Council meeting during interviews of 148 consultant firms; and offered to attend on behalf of the CEC during that 149 portion of the meeting dedicated to the comprehensive plan update; and 150 then report back to the CEC. 151 152 City Manager Trudgeon noted the meeting would also be available on 153 cable television and on the city website for later review for those unable to 154 attend or watch the interviews live. 155 156 PRIORITY PROJECT UPDATE: Recommend ways to expand city b. 157 learning and engagement opportunities 158 (Commissioners Manke and Holub) 159 160 In the absence of Commissioner Holub, Commissioner Manke reported on 161 the Open House and Roseville U aspects of this priority project. 162 163 Without too much information yet developed, Commissioner Manke 164 reported that the main issue was one of timing for an open house in the 165 near future, with election season and holidays fast approaching. If the 166 intent was to have an open house sooner rather than later, Commissioner 167 Manke opined that January of 2017 would be the earliest timeframe when 168 schedules have slowed down. 169 170 Commissioner Manke reiterated past discussions on keeping the first open 171 house small (e.g., four tables) perhaps with the Fire, Police, and Parks & 172 Recreation Departments represented, one for the City Council for a "meet 173 and greet" opportunity, and one table shared by advisory commissions 174 where they could start promoting applications for the new commissioner

cycle that would be forthcoming. Commissioner Manke suggested a

thematic open house, with this first one based on public safety, focusing

on emergency medical services or other things residents may potentially

experience during the winter timeframe, and police advice on how to drive

175

176

177

178

183

184

185 186

187

188 189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

202203

204

205

206

207

208

209

210211

212213

214

215

216217

218

219

220

221222

223

224

safely during the winter months, and park and recreation opportunities during the winter months.

While open to other suggestions for content and context, Commissioner Manke suggested having the open house located on the City Hall main floor, with conference rooms reserved for use as applicable.

Prior to his tenure with the City of Roseville, City Manager Trudgeon noted the city had held an open house on the City Hall campus, with all buildings open to tours and an "all hands on deck" approach. Mr. Trudgeon noted the popularity of residents and their families viewing the various equipment used in the city. While January is a slower month, Mr. Trudgeon questioned how an event may be attended due to really cold and snowy weather, and how that might impact outside displays if applicable. Mr. Trudgeon suggested an early spring date (e.g. March or April) may be better, and scheduling it on a weekend when people are more free to attend, and also allowing City Councilmembers to attend; with a possible tie-in to Roseville U with min-sessions in the Council Chambers or larger conference rooms, or to initiate questions/feedback on the comprehensive plan update. Mr. Trudgeon noted comments of Councilmembers as to their interest in an event similar to that held in the past, but recognized it was a big production compared to the smaller focus suggested by Commissioner Manke.

Commissioner Manke stated she could see holding two open houses annually, one with a winter focus and one with a summer focus. However, Commissioner Manke stated it was her recollection that the intent was to hold the open house sooner rather than later; and if holding in January, there may be liability issues with the slippery parking lot if the broader campus was used versus only City Hall. If the event was pushed off, Commissioner Manke noted it would definitely allow for more planning all-around focus, and could serve as a kick-off for Roseville's summer celebrations the end of June.

Commissioner Manke suggested preparing recommendations to the City Council for both options for two events to be held in the winter and summer or one larger event held later in 2017.

At the request of Chair Becker, City Manager Trudgeon confirmed that the former annual Home & Garden was held each February, usually Presidents' Day weekend at Fairview Community Center, involving exhibitors and vendors, with classrooms for workshops.

At the request of Commissioner Sparby, City Manager Trudgeon provided a brief synopsis of Roseville U, initiated about 7-8 years ago and providing outreach and education to residents about city operations. Mr.

Trudgeon advised that it had not been scheduled for 2016 due to declining attendance in recent years even with the format changed several times to encourage attendance and interest from the community. Mr. Trudgeon noted the significant time commitment for staff in preparing, especially if not well attended, whether a two-hour presentation followed by questions, or shorter sessions and not requiring residents to sign up for all sessions, only those of specific interest to them.

Chair Becker reported he had attended the eight-week program and found it very interesting, noting the Public Works Department received rave reviews, with the Police Department and Canine service of most interest to him.

Commissioner Manke suggested something more elaborate involving the entire city campus and providing aspects not typical of City Hall, similar to the former Home & Garden Fair, and possibly allowing vendors, making it an overall Roseville experience, not just specific to the City of Roseville. Commissioner Manke suggested that might provide a larger draw. Commissioner Manke suggested classes could also be a part of it, using smaller rooms at City Hall as appropriate, or even moving the event to the Skating Center if more room was needed.

Discussion ensued about past effort; logistics depending on attendance; how best to reconfigure community involvement and interest; and how to address challenges based on past events.

Chair Becker stated there seemed to be interest on the City Council to have an open house in some format, and suggested breakout sessions could be held for shorter periods (e.g. 30 minute overviews of each department), and done more than once per day to facilitate those attending.

Commissioner Sparby suggested that it sounded like an achievable goal at this point would be a new logistical plan and how best to present one or two options to the City Council to see their interest in dedicating staff to such an effort. Commissioner Sparby further suggested those options should consider a cost benefit analysis for the City Council's consideration.

Commissioner Sparby offered support for condensing sessions even further to 15-20 minutes and possibly to be held over a few weeks to decrease the burden on staff for preparation and also minimize impacts on resources; and limit staff's involvement. Commissioner Sparby suggested retaining Roseville U as a resource for residents; but suggested a more achievable goal for the CEC may be to reformat it and present it to the City Council for their decision, allowing them to perform their own cost benefit analysis on it.

City Manager Trudgeon referenced Item 2.c in the priority project list, to evaluate the scope of Roseville U.

Commissioner Manke encouraged Commissioner Sparby to join her and Commissioner Holub with this priority. Commissioner Manke mentioned an idea she brought forward at the last CEC meeting, a "Roseville Passport" allowing you to go through various components of an open house and mini-university, with stamps for each component and possible award at the end.

City Manager Trudgeon noted a similar idea, "Bingo" stickers for each vendor was used at the former Home & Garden Fair annually with a drawing that was used to encourage residents to visit with vendors at the event.

Commissioner Sparby suggested another component may be rebranding the event to re-ignite resident interest, such as a new title for the program to be used as an additional selling point; with rebranding and remarketing it as something similar but different.

City Manager Trudgeon suggested using the 2015 format in smaller sessions with specific topics that could differ annually, providing a multitude and wide variety but condensed and specific topics for sessions from each department.

From a community engagement standpoint, Commissioner Sparby suggested it would be a good gauge of what was working and what wasn't working based on attendance at seminars and areas of interest. Commissioner Sparby suggested that would be a selling point for the City Council's consideration as to whether time should be extended. However, for the first attempt, Commissioner Sparby suggested not devoting too much staff or City Council resources upfront, with attempts made to revive Roseville U and get it back on its feet again, based on City Council interest in doing so.

Commissioner Tomlinson suggested a good opportunity was with the comprehensive plan update process to see the areas of interest from residents and using that as an opportunity to learn from that and then gear up and craft other citizen engagement projects accordingly for citizens over the next year.

Commissioner Sattler suggested staggering sessions on different dates and times, allowing options for residents depending on their areas of interest.

316 City Manager Trudgeon suggested that the subcommittee provide topics 317 and ideas for the next CEC meeting. At that meeting, Mr. Trudgeon 318 advised he would provide information and statistics on past attendance and 319 past practices, all toward the effort of prompting conversation on 320 reformatting the events. 321 322 Chair Becker asked that input be options for an open house; and then to have additional discussion on Roseville U, keeping them separate for now: 323 324 duly noted by Commissioner Manke. 325 326 Commissioner Sparby opined that a critical component for next month's 327 discussion should include a rundown of who presented at the last 328 Roseville U, by topic and presenter, and attendance, allowing the CEC to 329 put together parameters for content and a proposed schedule. 330 331 Chair Becker suggested that information be provided in a slide 332 presentation for presentation at the next CEC Meeting as opposed to too 333 much information in the packet to print out; as well as dividing the 334 information by department. 335 336 City Manager Trudgeon duly noted that request. 337 338 PRIORITY PROJECT UPDATE: Form strategies for outreach to c. 339 under-represented groups 340 (Commissioners Gardella and Sattler) 341 342 With the absence tonight of Commissioner Gardella, Commissioner stated 343 they had no update as they had been unable to get together. 344 345 Referencing Commissioner Holub's previous requests that these CEC meetings be less formal, Commissioner Sattler suggested if it would be 346 347 productive for a semi-annual work session format to go more in-depth 348 with various priority projects and meet with partners to share ideas with 349 Commissioner Sattler noted the difficulty of their the full body. 350 subcommittee in meeting outside the CEC meeting. 351 352 Chair Becker offered to include that as an item on next month's agenda for 353 discussion. 354 355 At the request of Commissioner Manke, City Manager Trudgeon noted 356 that could create challenges if the intent was to break away in smaller groups at a CEC regular meeting for open meeting and televising 357 358 purposes. At the further request of Commissioner Manke, Mr. Trudgeon

reviewed State Statute requirements for closed sessions for litigation and

property acquisition negotiations as the only options for the City Council.

359

360

361

Chair Becker noted a work session could still be televised if they were targeted to specific topics (e.g. 2017 priority project planning).

Commissioner Manke suggested cutting back on some of the current agenda items, with a certain time (e.g. 45 minutes) set aside at the beginning of a meeting to talk about one subject matter.

Chair Becker noted that could be incorporated into the current plan; since updates on these priority projects were intended to be topic-specific and designed for the subcommittees to do the legwork and provide more concise discussion items. Chair Becker noted that, to-date, some subcommittees are providing that information and some not depending on the topic and its timing.

Commissioner Sparby noted that Commissioner Gardella was going to circulate her draft definition of "under-represented groups," and reminded Commissioners Gardella and Sattler to provide the CEC with that input as a good starting point before the next meeting. Commissioner Sparby suggested that would be beneficial for the CEC to present to the City Council to hammer down that definition and something they could refer to in their higher level discussions.

d. PRIORITY PROJECT UPDATE: Advocate for select items from 2014 CEC recommended policies and strategies

(Chair Becker)

Town Hall Meeting

City Manager Trudgeon noted the City Council seemed supportive and open to a townhall meeting, but had yet to determine how/when to execute it and a date. At this point in 2016, Mr. Trudgeon suggesting trying for 2017, perhaps around the first of the year, but advised at this point, he couldn't provide further specifics. Mr. Trudgeon offered to include that as an additional item on future agenda issues for the City Council to consider to bring up for discussion if they show interest in doing so.

Availability of Approved City Council / Advisory Commission Minutes City Manager Trudgeon noted some of these items fall behind due to a scheduling delays with monthly advisory commission meeting schedules, as staff continues to work through the entire full text of meetings and formatting for the website; as well as linking televised meetings. Mr. Trudgeon advised that staff was considering creating a template to link all City Council meetings, without the need to search out every single agenda, but create a C-TV page, still in the experimental stage. Mr. Trudgeon noted the need to find more efficient ways that avoid taking too much staff time, even though those efforts are not always possible beyond simply taking the necessary steps to accomplish the desired goal.

Chair Becker asked if emails recapping a City Council meeting were available on the website; with City Manager Trudgeon advising he would need to review that, as he only received paper copies of that recap.

At the request of Commissioner Tomlinson, City Manager Trudgeon confirmed that the city used email service formatting for what is embedded through forms or templates. Mr. Trudgeon further noted the city purchased its web page form a vendor with templates, without an inhouse staff person developing formats; and allowing constant contact on the website attempting a version that looks more professional versus a canned template, and able to be populated with specific Roseville items. However, Mr. Trudgeon noted staff was always open to make it look better and be more useful.

In terms of making recorded meetings more readily available, Commissioner Sparby noted he found the current format for videos somewhat cumbersome on the city's website; and difficult to pull up and navigate on his I-Pad. Specifically, Commissioner Sparby suggested codes or times for a particular segment he was interested in viewing versus having to watch the entire meeting, if that was possible with the C-TV logistics. Commissioner Sparby suggested reviewing how videos were streamed and if it could be done better, or transitioning them to You Tube and embedded to C-TV. Since You Tube is the top of the line for ease of use, Commissioner Sparby suggested the city may want to take advantage of that at no additional cost to his knowledge. If that could make it more accessible to the community, Commissioner Sparby suggested that City Manager Trudgeon provide an update on those capabilities for the next meeting.

City Manager Trudgeon reported that, at this point, the city didn't host any of those videos, but relied on links to C-TV who handles the whole page. Mr. Trudgeon noted there have been improvements made from previous efforts, but there were still challenges, especially for I-Phones. Mr. Trudgeon stated his hesitation with the city taking it over is creating more work on the staff end, since this is a nice service already available to the city, and recent updates made by C-TV to their web page to make it more user-friendly.

While recognizing technology and city efforts had come a long way, Commissioner Sparby reiterated the need for citizens to easily access and get to the point in a meeting they want to view; keeping in mind the length of some of those City Council meetings and how much more user-friendly it would be if a citizen only had to navigate a portion of a meeting versus the entire meeting. Commissioner Sparby suggested working with C-TV to learn their capabilities, with benefit to the CEC in such involvement to make recommendations to the City Council or others on future activities.

Chair Becker suggested that City Manager Trudgeon reach out to C-TV to see if they can upgrade play time, and allow access to specific segments of interest to a viewer; with that request duly noted by Mr. Trudgeon.

Discussion ensued regarding City Council meeting format and agendas and timing; and ways to take steps to make their viewing more intuitive and helpful for people in finding specific information.

e. Update on "I Am Roseville" Photo Project

 (Commissioners Sparby and Holub)

While having no specific update, Commissioner Sparby noted positive responses from the City Council at the last joint meeting in moving forward with the project, without any specific guidance as to who would lead that initiative and how to transition it off the CEC to other parties to carry it forward. Commissioner Sparby expressed interest in City Manager Trudgeon as to the possibility of staff involvement in the project going forward, and if so, what type of support the CEC could have in putting current ideas into action, or if that support would need to be developed from a volunteer perspective and then brought to staff once more developed. At this point, Commissioner Sparby opined the project needed to find direction and brought from an idea to reality logistically.

While hating to keep repeating "no," City Manager Trudgeon advised that city communications department staff could assist to some extent, but not take the lead on the project, with volunteers still needed to work with businesses. Mr. Trudgeon noted past discussions about involvement of the Roseville Visitor's Association (RVA) if they deemed it fit into their vision, and based on their involvement in past efforts such as this. However, Mr. Trudgeon reminded the CEC that the RVA's hook is to promote tourism; and stated with the amount of work possibly involved in this project, he was not aware of who could take ownership beyond volunteers.

At this stage, Commissioner Sparby suggested that he and Commissioner Holub take the project under advisement to determine logistically how to move it forward. Commissioner Sparby recognized the support given by the City Council, but not yet able to identify who would push it forward and the feasibility of doing so. Commissioner Sparby expressed hope that his subcommittee could come to the next CEC meeting with a more substantive update.

> Chair Becker noted discussions last month about potential other groups who may be willing to donate some time (e.g. Chambers of Commerce

and RVA), and encouraged the subcommittee to pursue those preliminary conversations. Discussion ensued the types of photos intended and their format (e.g. static photos or a changing video presentation); their presentation; how photos would be selected and presented and how often changed; and the audience being sought. Commissioner Sparby suggested Commissioner Manke become involved in this project given her considerable interest and expertise.

Chair Becker suggested the fine points may come forward as other stakeholders offer their support, and specific ideas come out; encouraging the subcommittee's flexibility until those become more apparent.

Further discussion included teaming with the RVA and larger events to interest them with tourism; funding for the RVA form the hotel tax and promotions according to those revenue streams to promote economic vitality according to their mission; aiming photos at events to attract people to Roseville while showcasing the community for Roseville residents at the same time; and defining the end goal of what this project this trying to accomplish and how to reach the particular audience being sought.

Commissioner Sattler noted the original purpose and focus of the project was so Roseville residents could see themselves around the community and have a tie in with Roseville businesses to build on community engagement.

f. Continue Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings Discussion

Chair Becker referenced the memorandum (Attachment 5.f) from Senior Planner Bryan Lloyd from the City's Community Development Department, and welcomed Mr. Lloyd to tonight's meeting.

Senior Planner Lloyd referenced his memorandum, as well as the detailed information provide to the CEC in their meeting materials last month, and state legislation. Mr. Lloyd noted the majority of cities in Minnesota, like Roseville, had opted out of the legislation, preferring to define these temporary dwellings under their own city code requirements.

Mr. Lloyd advised that his purpose in attending tonight's CEC meeting was to seek input from them since reviewing those materials as the city considered an enhanced community engagement process to obtain citizen feedback on this issue.

City Manager Trudgeon reviewed the typical process followed when mending city code and for typical land use cases through a public newspaper and mailed notice as applicable, public hearing before the Planning Commission and then to the City Council. Even though this is a citywide issue, Mr. Trudgeon noted this could fall into that same process, and short of a mailed notice to all residents, the goal was to get community feedback before this is acted on. Mr. Trudgeon opined it was a challenge to find the people who might be interested or to determine what that interest might be.

Commissioner Manke noted her immediate personal concern in fitting this type of structure into most back yards in Roseville, particularly in her neighborhood and how feasible something like that would actually be in certain areas in Roseville with smaller lots; or even larger properties with larger homes and not much yard space available.

City Manager Trudgeon noted they were considered temporary buildings, and may be considered in a driveway under certain circumstances.

Senior Planner Lloyd noted their size in terms of a fifth wheel trailer or camper versus a larger motor home; and agreed there may be many places in Roseville where backyard access would be difficult. Mr. Lloyd noted that was the core piece of state legislation to meet setback requirements, including the front yard; that would have made such a temporary dwelling impossible for many Roseville properties.

If this becomes a reality and is supported by the community, Senior Planner Lloyd noted "temporary" could still involve some time depending on if it was for an elderly couple or if it was the case of a long-term disability for someone of any age who would have difficulty living in their own homes, unless it was a short-term single-level space or until long-term arrangements could be made with modifications to their home or they were able to facilitate a move elsewhere. Mr. Lloyd noted this could also involve a youth who sustained an illness or injury and was no longer able to navigate their home or the equipment needed for their care in that home; with this type of temporary dwelling brought to a site for a few months during preparation of long-term care and issues involved.

If Roseville residents prove interested in accommodating such a temporary dwelling, Senior Planner Lloyd advised that city staff could provide an educational process of how best to do it, but noted the first step was to get the conversation started about whether or not the community wanted the option, creating a need for community engagement early on in the process. Mr. Lloyd noted one such question was who staff try hardest to bring to the table first.

591

592

593

594

595

596

597

598

599

600

601

602

603

604

605

606

607 608

609

610

611

612

613 614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621 622

623

624

625

626

627

628

629 630

631 632

633

634

635

Commissioner Sparby clarified that the issue is more how to effectively engage people ahead of time versus whether or not it should be allowed so as not to blindside someone by providing some semblance of discussion prior to implementation. Commissioner Sparby reviewed available communication items, and from his perspective suggested the best way to engage lots of different citizens would be through a front page article in the Roseville Review, and NextDoor.com. Commissioner Sparby opined this would engage older residents through traditional means, while also reaching younger residents online through that source. Commissioner Sparby agreed that starting the discussion was important; and opined that he could guarantee almost no one had heard of this or knew what a temporary family health care dwelling was. Commissioner Sparby suggested a pro/con series in the newspaper could allow the conversation to get started and introduce it to those most vested to inform them best. Commissioner Sparby suggested a dual approach could also be used to hit people from all different angles to get the word out, even though some may still be missed when the issue comes up.

Chair Becker suggested alerting residents to who would be housed in the units, for how long that could be and why to provide clarity to residents living next door to these temporary units of their necessity and purpose. Chair Becker stated it was difficult for him to determine how to reach the appropriate stakeholders or how to target individuals who may need this type of housing, since it could potentially involve anyone. Chair Becker suggested piggybacking local off **CHAT** and Roseville dementia/Alzheimer's groups; or other events going on in the Roseville area related to caregivers and targeting skilled nursing facilities with transitional care to seek their perspective. Other than using the city's web page to publicize this discussion as widely as possible for neighbors who may be living next door to a situation, Chair Becker stated he wasn't sure how else to target the prospective audience.

Commissioner Sattler suggested determining who the main parties may be that support this type of housing; and agreed with targeting those involved in recent meetings at the library for their interest level. For those against, Commissioner Sattler suggested real estate agents or those selling their home over the next 6-12 months that might consider losing property value if installed next door to them. Commissioner Sattler also suggested surveys or "how to" educational pieces, along with mock debates on the pro/con side, such as a caregiver perspective versus a real estate agent perspective to address specific topics involved.

Senior Planner Lloyd noted a resource in real estate agents familiar with those of general interest in selling their homes in the near future if not now.

Chair Becker suggested targeting senior populated areas in Roseville, if that demographic data was available.

Commissioner Tomlinson sought clarification as to the ultimate goal of this community engagement: whether to get feedback, to inform all citizens, to get an ordinance passed; or to drive ordinance language from this feedback.

Senior Planner Lloyd clarified that the intent is to help people understand the topic and type of dwelling involved; with the understanding if, as a community, there was interest in facilitating this temporary housing option, or if the preference was to continue using established facilities to care for those needs as in the past and not facilitate temporary, on-site dwellings at all. Depending on that community interest level, Mr. Lloyd noted that would inform the mechanics of what regulations were needed. Mr. Lloyd noted that, once the city had opted out of the state legislation, it now had time to look and see if the community desired something similar to or different than that legislation was intended to establish, allowing more latitude in that decision-making.

Commissioner Tomlinson agreed that identifying the demographic was difficult, since it could ultimately affect anyone.

Similarly, Commissioner Sparby agreed with the geographical difficulties in determining where that population might pop up, since there was no specific criteria that he was aware of as to how it may play out, since it could happen anywhere and for any reason. Commissioner Sparby suggested a good place to start would be to introduce the topic to all residents, whether through the *Roseville Review* with a dedicated article by way of introduction by city staff, to lay out what a temporary family dwelling actually is and city rationale in opting out of the state legislation. Commissioner Sparby opined this may spur some interest from the public if they were aware that a discussion would be coming up at the City Council. Commissioner Sparby also suggesting getting that information out to the social media platforms, including starting a topic on "Speak Up! Roseville," since most people had yet to hear about this housing type.

Commissioner Tomlinson agreed that this would be a good topic for "Speak Up! Roseville" and also serve to drive more traffic to that website; and a possible link to a newspaper article to inform the discussion.

Commissioner Manke sought information on the cost of such a dwelling unit (estimated by Mr. Lloyd of up to \$50,000 or also available on a temporary rental basis that could be regularly services, and self-contained for towing behind a truck, with self-contained water and wastewater tanks, and developed in Minnesota for winter use in our climate, and then

removed when no longer needed). With these being so new to most people, Commissioner Manke suggested having a model in a city parking lot for a few weeks, allowing residents to visually inspect one to better understand it this was a situation that could work for them if in such a situation; or if they would accept it next door to their property.

City Manager suggested the possibility of displaying one as part of a future City open house.

Senior Planner Lloyd thanked commissioners for providing their input, stating he found it helpful to get their different ideas, especially the on-site example; and internet and print media sources to provide a good variety of ways to reach the broader audience and alert individual Roseville citizens.

Since there was no current proposal to move forward in any fashion and this was simply introductory in nature, Commissioner Sparby suggested if it was decided to move forward with this option, a more tailored process could evolve, or if there was enough pressure one way or the other from the public input received. At that time, Commissioner Sparby suggested additional comments could be solicited on particular proposals.

g. Speak Up! Roseville Review

At the request of Chiai Becker, Commissioner Tomlinson provided an update, as outlined in Attachment 5.g and specific to active discussions and ideas currently on the "Speak Up! Roseville" website and its link on the city website.

Commissioner Tomlinson noted the small icon on the city website, and suggested if it was larger and more prominent, it may drive additional traffic.

As discussion ensued, City Manager Trudgeon noted the city's communication staff rotated areas among those receiving the most frequent hits and those less popular. However, Mr. Trudgeon advised that staff had talked about moving "Speak Up! Roseville " up on the list to see if it helped, even though there was limited real estate on the website to do so; as well as lots of competition for front page access.

Commissioner Tomlinson opined that if this site was intended as a priority, it needed to be made one.

Commissioner Sparby agreed with the need to make this a priority and accessible or it would never be used; as well as not utilizing the money being spent on the site. When the list of recommendations was put together, Commissioner Sparby noted this site had been the number one priority.

745

747 748

746

750 751 752

749

753 754 755

756 757 758

759

765 766 767

764

768 769 770

771 772

773

At a recent City Council meeting, Chair Becker reported that Communications Manager Garry Bowman had provided a presentation on the "Speak Up! Roseville" website and an update on registered users and topics to-date. Given the subsequent discussion by the City Council and the results, Chair Becker suggested his colleagues consider viewing that discussion; noting that in general there wasn't a lot of support for this site anymore; and he anticipated once the first term of the contract is up, they would choose not to extend it unless there was a significant uptick in activity. In addition to the site not being used, Chair Becker noted other social media factors were utilized more and were easier to use. Chair Becker opined that, while this site may have a number of different functions that may provide for a more formatted discussion, in general the City Council thoughts at this point were not supportive. Therefore, if the CEC sought to salvage or improve on the site, there needed to be a sense of urgency and priority to accomplish that goal.

With that in mind, Commissioner Sattler asked if the CEC should still focus on improving the site or phase it how and incorporate it into a similar social media site.

Chair Becker suggested that was a good discussion to have; and while there was no City Council action at this point, they were pessimistic about the site.

City Manager Trudgeon reported the contract was up in the spring of 2017; with City Council action anticipated in January or February at which time he expected they would discontinue the site.

In response to questions of the CEC, City Manager Trudgeon advised that the first of the two-year contract cycle would come up next spring; and the city could exit the contract without any financial penalty. Mr. Trudgeon noted the pessimism of the City Council was in their questioning if this was the best use of staff time to solicit input, but suggested the CEC continue to ride it out and check back after the first of the year. For reference, Mr. Trudgeon advised that the discussion was held by the City Council at their September 19, 2016 meeting for those wishing to view the discussion.

Commissioner Manke opined that the CEC needed to see if making the site more visible increased its usage, noting leaving it buried wouldn't serve to increase the usage.

Commissioner Tomlinson agreed with that good point; and asked if the CEC wanted to write it off now or see what could happen over the next few months by making it more visible and a higher priority, at which point

the City Council might change their minds if this tool is proven valuable versus other social media forums.

Commissioner Sattler noted if people get excited about the site and bookmark it, and then find it gone, it wouldn't serve a good purpose for communication efforts either. Commissioner Sattler suggested refreshing the topics to some more fitting with today versus those put up six months ago during the summer.

City Manager Trudgeon duly noted the CEC's point and reported that staff had held a discussion earlier today for a cue of potential topics for a concentrated drive to measure any increased use in registered users and/or topics.

Commissioner Manke suggested not only making it more visible on the city website, but also calling attention to it in other communication formats out there (e.g. city newsletter or local newspaper).

City Manager Trudgeon clarified that whatever topic is out there is also added to the city's social media sits, as well as highlighting "Speak Up! Roseville" in the *City News* newsletter when it was rolled out.

Commissioner Manke noted the delay in rolling out the site, opining that delay may have diminished the kick-off the site truly deserved.

Chair Becker suggested advertising the site in the *Roseville Review* sooner rather than later; and including current topics on line that hadn't been promoted in the first news articles when the site was rolled out.

City Manager Trudgeon noted content was always sought for relevant topics for city publications;; but noted there was no guarantee the newspaper would publish articles submitted by the city.

While "Speak Up!' Roseville" may not survive the current contract, Commissioner Sparby opined that it was still important to look at the city's communication methods and how Roseville residents were being engaged. If this project dies, Commissioner Sparby suggested the City Council may ask what worked, what didn't work and what to do going forward. Therefore, Commissioner Sparby opined it was important that the CEC have that thorough analysis available for them prior to them asking for it. Commissioner Sparby noted there may be something similar to the site (e.g. bulletin board functionality) that could be applied to the city website allowing residents to post and for staff to communicate; with the next iteration being of that nature. Commissioner Sparby opined that the CEC definitely had a role in putting its input into this type of medium.

Commissioner Tomlinson noted the changes made over the last month on the site as outlined in his attachment, as well as his review of other cities using additional modules.

Chair Becker noted the idea with "Speak Up! Roseville" was to build a base before moving on to other modules and then deciding how best to use those additional options if the site gained sufficient traction. Chair Becker opined the site was the victim of how people now use the Internet, speaking from his personal use of his "favorites" versus broader searches. Therefore, Chair Becker suggested perhaps the answer was to put more energy into other social media sites versus a specific Roseville app.

6. New Business

7. Chair, Committee and Staff Reports

a. Chair Report

Chair Becker noted the most recent City Council discussion on neighborhood associations, and their request that he be present for that discussion in case of questions on the CEC and Task Force reports. Chair Becker reported that the City Council went in the direction of strengthening its block captains and clubs, and neighborhood watch groups that are currently organized by the Police Department, with a way for staff to document those groups. Chair Becker noted city staff's recommendation to the City Council that the documented groups could serve if and when those groups chose to become more formalized into a neighborhood association (e.g. by laws and an annual meeting).

As discussion ensued, City Manager Trudgeon concurred that the City Council had stated their interest in continuing to explore block captains and see if those groups may have interest in becoming neighborhood associations. While those groups have yet to be approached, Mr. Trudgeon noted the City Council's interest in pursuing the CEC's tool kit idea for those neighbors interested in forming their own association; and their appreciation for the resources provided by the CEC. Mr. Trudgeon advised that city staff had been tasked with streamlining those tool kit ideas into a one page document as a resource available from the city. Mr. Trudgeon noted the City Council's repeated mention of taking baby steps; deferring consideration of annual mailings, possible funding, and a more active presence for associations on the city website until an actual need of level of interest arose.

City Manager Trudgeon reported that the direction from the City Council was for city staff to hold internal discussions and at a future date report back to them on what could or could not work; but that it no longer needed to be on the CEC agenda.

Chair Becker stated he had spoken with Commissioner Gardella prior to tonight's meeting; and she had formally resigned from the CEC at the end of November 2016. Therefore, Chair Becker advised that the November CEC agenda would include an item to elect a new Vice Chair to serve out her term as Vice Chair through March of 2017; at which time (April 2017) elections would be held for a new Chair and Vice Chair.

b. Staff Report

i. Upcoming Items on Future Council Agendas

City Manager Trudgeon advised that the City Council would be interviewing two comprehensive plan update firms and then selecting the firm in upcoming meetings.

City Manager Trudgeon reported on the wonderful turnout for Imagine Roseville, for the policing and race discussion held earlier this month; with 200 in attendance and providing great and positive energy for a tough topic. Mr. Trudgeon reviewed the format of the community meeting and take aways for upcoming meetings; with the meeting having been taped for later replay on C-TV, as well as social media. Mr. Trudgeon stated he found the discussion impactful and encouraging; and accomplishing the goals of what was being attempted as the community's demographics continue to change, and outreach and engagement efforts needed going forward. Mr. Trudgeon stated a follow-up discussion was tentatively scheduled in December of 2016, for this community-driven and city involved issue and efforts.

ii. Other Items

Vice Chair Election

8. Commission Communications, Reports, and Announcements

9. Commissioner-Initiated Items for Future Meetings

Commissioner Sparby asked for specifics on the city's recent acquisition of a piece of property in SW Roseville on the corner of County Road B and Cleveland Avenue. Commissioner Sparby suggested this may be an area for community engagement since it appears undecided as to future use of the parcel.

City Manager Trudgeon clarified that the purchase was made for and had always been intended for park use. To that end, Mr. Trudgeon noted the Park & Recreation Department's robust engagement process for those in the immediate neighborhood and broader area to gain their input of what they'd like to see and what is needed. Mr. Trudgeon advised that after the first of the year, that typical

best practices engagement process would begin to get ideas, and then more meetings as things progressed and based on public input. Mr. Trudgeon advised that such a process was already hardwired into the city acquisition of park properties.

City Manager Trudgeon reported on a similar acquisition and process in SE Roseville for a pocket park in a high-density residential (HDR) area with apartments and significant immigrant population but lacking community play and meeting space at this time. Mr. Trudgeon noted the city didn't make decisions at City Hal without community input through that robust engagement process.

Commissioner Sparby stated he saw CEC and Parks & Recreation Commission cross-involvement when it came to engaging the community, and suggested the CEC be kept abreast of that existing communication avenue being utilized by the Parks & Recreation Department to receive that input as a bigger part of community engagement and how they solicited feedback. Commissioner Sparby suggested using their process as a learning tool for the CEC and identify what is working and maybe things that could be improved upon.

City Manager Trudgeon advised that staff could report back on past practices used to-date on what was found most successful, especially with the successes of the Parks Master Plan process, with those decisions having involved considerable engagement with Roseville residents being very passionate about their parks. Mr. Trudgeon offered to research the department's typical engagement process; and asked specifically what information he should provide (e.g. mechanics, successes, and the intent of the information being requested).

For mechanics, Commissioner Sparby suggested knowing the subject matter and then how mechanics were utilized from point a to point b; then using those as a case study in terms of how we're doing community engagement to get from one point to another. Since he just heard about the park acquisition, and this engagement process used by the Parks & Recreation Department, Commission Sparby opined it would be enlightening for the CEC and provide for a friendly conversation between them and other advisory commissions and their engagement processes.

Chair Becker suggested identifying how much was done by an advisory commission and how much done by city staff.

To build on Commissioner Sparby's comment, and since the last CEC meeting, Commissioner Tomlinson noted he had started a discussion on NextDoor.com in his area of town about citizens who didn't feel engaged in a certain project and how the city handled it. Commissioner Tomlinson noted they were very vocal about it; and asked if there was a process in place or if it would be prudent to look back at those particular situations. Specific to property acquisition (e.g. former National Guard Armory), Commissioner Tomlinson noted there had certainly

Roseville Community Engagement Commission (CEC) Meeting Minutes Page 22 – October 13, 2016 958 been misunderstandings and miscommunication as to the purpose of the property; 959 and expressed curiosity if there had been any opportunity to get feedback from the 960 community; and if not, where did the city miss that opportunity and how could it 961 have played out differently. 962 963 City Manager Trudgeon noted that the misunderstandings came from a lot of 964 missing context, with the City Council making a decision and allowing for an 965 opportunity for residents to express their concerns. However, Mr. Trudgeon 966 noted sometimes people were unhappy with those decisions; and while a look 967 back is always possible, he stated he wasn't sure how productive it would prove 968 in this particular instance. 969 970 Commissioner Tomlinson stated he wasn't necessarily using this property as the 971 example, but if it provided an opportunity to look back, it could be helpful to see 972 what could have been done better or differently and be able to close that feedback 973 loop. Commissioner Tomlinson opined he thought there was a miss, but not 974 knowing the process involved, it predated his involvement, causing him to 975 suggest the look-back option. 976 977 Chair Becker suggested that as a 2017 priority project; rather than looking back 978 on past decisions, maybe to consider a process in place for community 979 engagement moving forward. 980 981 Discussion ensued about the private nature of NextDoor.com for citizens to hold 982 private conversations without city involvement, with City Manager Trudgeon 983 confirming that city staff didn't even see it with the site being deliberately 984 designed that way. 985 986 Commissioner Manke opined that was part of the communication breakdown if 987 conversations were out there that the city wasn't even aware of, how could the 988 city have an opportunity to review and define the problem.

Commissioner Tomlinson stated he had been unaware of that barrier to NextDoor.com.

989 990

991

992 993

994

995 996

997

998 999

1000

1001

1002

1003

City Manager Trudgeon advised that the city could put things out there, but they didn't see the conversations; reiterating that the site had been designed that way.

Chair Becker concurred, noting often posts on the site are neighborhood-specific and not citywide, with some of those local issues becoming heated and personal.

Commissioner Tomlinson noted his observation in this case was that the property issue was a recurring them stated by multiple citizens, and while not agreeing or disagreeing with the City Council decision, their issue was with the process itself. Commissioner Tomlinson stated that was the rationale for his comment in seeing a potential opportunity to learn from this. However, Commissioner Tomlinson

1004		recognized that NextDoor.com was apparently not as open as he had understood it
1005		to be.
1006		
1007		Commissioner Manke opined that was the purpose of implementing the "Speak
1008		Up! Roseville" website.
1009		
1010	10.	Recap of Commission Actions This Meeting
1011		Chair Becker briefly highlighted actions and follow-up for tonight's meeting.
1012		
1013	11.	Adjournment
1013 1014	11.	Adjournment Commissioner Sparby moved, Commissioner Sattler seconded, adjournment of
	11.	v
1014	11.	Commissioner Sparby moved, Commissioner Sattler seconded, adjournment of
1014 1015	11.	Commissioner Sparby moved, Commissioner Sattler seconded, adjournment of
1014 1015 1016	11.	Commissioner Sparby moved, Commissioner Sattler seconded, adjournment of the meeting at approximately 8:52 p.m.
1014 1015 1016 1017	11.	Commissioner Sparby moved, Commissioner Sattler seconded, adjournment of the meeting at approximately 8:52 p.m. Ayes: 5
1014 1015 1016 1017 1018	11.	Commissioner Sparby moved, Commissioner Sattler seconded, adjournment of the meeting at approximately 8:52 p.m. Ayes: 5 Nays: 0